
Liquidity and Capital Resources 

The following table summarizes our comparative statements of cash flow: 

($ in millions) 

Net 0 eratin activities 
Investing activities for continuing operations: 

2008 

26.0 

2007 2006 

5.5 5.0 

Purchases of ro ert and e ui ment 3.7 @J3 2.8 
. __ ~J!Ritalized software development costs 

l_nye~i!l9_ ~~tJvj!!~~ .f.<?r.t?0r)tJnuJr)9_<?peraFons 
lny_e_~.1J9_~.~tiyjti~~ .~I?i.~ls~!>_nt!n_ue~ .operations . 

,Net change in cash and cash equivalents IS I 23.(j I $ I M I IS I 1.o,J 

Days revenue outstanding in accounts receivable including unbilled receivables 95 87 82 

Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using 
cash generated by our operations, as well as the net proceeds from capital including: 

June 2007 bank term loan borrowing of $1 0 million to refinance March 2006 secured notes, at a lower 
coupon rate. 

March 2006 issuance of secured notes and warrants (described below) which generated net cash 
proceeds of approximately $9.3 million. 

Capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases. 

Sources and uses of. cash: The Company's cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately 
$39.0 million at December 31, 2008, a $23.0 million increase from $16.0 million at December 31, 2007. 

Operations: Cash generated by continuing operations increased to $26.0 million in 2008 from $9.1 million in 
2007 due mainly to higher earnings. The cash generated by continuing operations in 2007 decreased 
$9.1 million 
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from $13.0 million in 2006 in due mainly to fluctuations in working capital. Discontinued operations used 
$3.6 million and $8.0 million in 2007 and 2006, respectively. The operations and cash flows of the discontinued 
operations have been eliminated and the Company has had no significant involvement in the operations since 
the disposal transaction. 

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions in 2008, 2007, and 2006 were $3.7, $2.6, and $2.8 million, 
respectively. Investments made in the development of carrier software for resale which had reached the stage 
of development calling for capitalization decreased by approximately $1 million in 2008 to about $0.5 million, 
as more developer labor cost was expensed as research and development. The amounts capitalized in 2007 
and 2006 were approximately $2.0 million each year. Discontinued operations generated $4 million from the 
sale of assets in 2007 and $1 million from collection of a note in 2008. Investments were made during 2006 in 
discontinued operations primarily for enhancements to the core software for resale by the mobile asset 
management unit. 

Financing activities: We have a $22 million revolving credit line with our principal bank through June 2010 
with borrowing was available at the bank's prime rate, which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 2008. 
Borrowings at any time are limited based mainly on accounts receivable levels as defined in the line of credit 
agreement. Availability under the line of credit available is also reduced by the amount of letters of credit 
outstanding, which was $2.3 million at December 31, 2008. As of December 31,2008, we had no borrowings 
outstanding under our bank line of credit and had approximately $19.3 million of unused borrowing availability 
under the line. 

On December 28, 2006, we issued a $5 million note for a term of three years, secured by accounts 
receivable of one customer to Tatonka Capital. Effective March 28, 2008, we paid the term loan in full, and 
modified the terms of the note to a line of credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum 
indebtedness of the line is equal to $1.7 million at December 31, 2008 less $0.2 million per month through 
December 28, 2009. The borrowing rate is London InterBank Offered Rate (LiBOR) plus 500 basis points. As 
of December 31 , 2008, we had no borrowings outstanding and $1.7 million in unused borrowing availability 
under the line. 

In June 2007, we refinanced $10 million of our March 2006 secured notes with a with a five year note 
payable to our principal bank. The borrowing rate under the new note was the bank's prime rate plus 0.25% 
per annum, (3.5% at December 31, 2008) and the note is repayable in equal monthly installments of 
$0.2 million plus interest. 

In March 2006, we issued (i) $10 million of secured notes due March 10, 2009, with cash interest at 14% 
per annum, and (ii) warrants to purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at 
an exercise price of $2.40 per share. Also, some warrants that we had previously issued in 2004 contained 
provisions which required an adjustment in both the warrant price and the number of warrants outstanding as a 
consequence of the issuance of 2006 Warrants. The resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was 
$6.5 million, net of the original discount of $3.5 million which was amortized to interest expense over its 
three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining 
unamortized debt discount and deferred debt issuance expenses of $2.4 million were written off in the second 
quarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2006 note. In December 2008, the holders of these 
warrants exercised their warrants and 1.1 million shares were issued for proceeds of $2.5 million. The 
remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011. 

Our line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a minimum adjusted 
quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio; as well as other restrictive covenants including, among others, 
restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake actions outside the 
ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, distribute 
dividends, and repurchase our stock, and minimum tangible net worth. The bank credit agreement also 
contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, operations, or 
financial condition of the Company to occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of repayment of any 
portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or priority of the lenders 
security interests in the collateral of the agreement. If our performance does not result in compliance with any 
of our 
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restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no 
assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including 
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance with the 
covenants related to our line of credit and term loan agreement and we believe that the Company will continue 
to comply with these covenants. 

We believe that we have sufficient capital resources with cash generated from operations as well as cash 
on hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital, and capital expenditure and debt 
service needs for the next twelve months. We have borrowing capacity available to us in the fonn of capital 
leases as well as a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank which expires in June 2010. We may also 
consider raising capital in the public markets as a means to meet our capital needs and to invest in our 
business. Although we may need to return to the capital markets, establish new credit facilities or raise capital 
in private transactions in order to meet our capital requirements, we can offer no assurances that we will be 
able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at all. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

We had standby letters of credit totaling approximately $2.3 million at year-end 2008 and $2.9 million at 
year-end 2007 in support of processing credit card payments from our customers, as collateral with a vendor, 
and security for office space. 

Contractual Commitments 

As of December 31,2008, our most significant commitments (including interest) consisted of long-term 
debt, obligations under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. We lease certain furniture and 
computer equipment under capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable 
operating leases. As of December 31, 2008 our commitments consisted of the following: 

~($,-",inc:m=iII",io:::n"s,,) ______________ ~ 2010-2011 2012-2013 Beyond Total 

Notes payable_________ -------=rn2:~n T3.(D r..::::::!]'D_ L_.c:J I ~[.B.tJ 
CapitallE::_ase_obligali()I1_~ ___ __ __ ____ _____________ 2.1-,-c---,_T2.~4 0.6 5.1 
:Operalillg-feases, pnmanly foroffi~e sp_~c,,--______ ::IDTIli q] I q[l -To:ai ~: 

Tolal contractual commitments $ 8.0 $ 11.3 $ 3.1 $ 0.6 $ 23.0 

Related Party Transactions 

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of 
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive 
Officer own a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a 
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is 
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be tenninated at 
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to 
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to 
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions 
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become 
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive lease at this 
new development site. 

Item ZA.QuaJjtative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

Interest Rate Risk 

We have limited exposure to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates. As discussed above 
under "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations­
Liquidity and Capital Resources," we have a $22 million line of credit. A hypothetical 100 basis point adverse 
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movement (increase) in the prime rate would have increased our interest expense for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 by approximately $0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

At December 31, 2008, we had cash and cash equivalents of $39.0 million. Cash and cash equivalents 
consisted of demand deposits and money market accounts that are interest rate sensitive. However, these 
investments have short maturities mitigating their sensitivity to interest rates. A hypothetical 100 basis point 
adverse movement (decrease) in interest rates would have increased our net loss for 2008 by approximately 
$0.1 million, resulting in no significant impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or 
cash flows. Substantially all of the Company's cash equivalents at December 31,2008 are money market fund 
investments which are backstopped as to principal under a federal guarantee program in effect through April 
2009. 

Foreign Currency Risk 

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we generated $8.6 million of revenue outside the U.S. A majority 
of our transactions generated outside the U.S. are denominated in U.S. dollars and a change in exchange 
rates would not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2008, 
we did not have any billed or unbilled accounts receivable that would expose us to foreign currency exchange 
risk. During 2008, our average receivables and deferred revenue subject to foreign currency exchange risk 
were $0.1 million and $0.7 million, respectively. We recorded transaction income of approximately $0.1 million 
on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Item 8 Financial Statements and SupplementarY Data 

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on 
page F-1. 

Item g.Chanqes In and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

!tern 9A. Controls and procedures 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we carried out an evaluation, 
under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and 
procedures. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and 
procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and 
procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable 
assurance of achieving their control objectives. 

Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our 
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) were 
effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports we file or 
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods 
specified in the applicable rules and forms, and that it is accumulated and communicated to our management, 
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions 
regarding required disclosure. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial 
reporting, as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial 
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reporting based on the framework in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this evaluation, management concluded 
that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31,2008. Management reviewed 
the results of their assessment with our Audit Committee. The effectiveness of our internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent 
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included in Item 9A of this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

There were no changes in the Company's internal controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended 
December 31, 2008, that are materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's 
internal control over financial reporting. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

We have audited TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.'s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting 
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our 
audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting OverSight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that 
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries 
as of December 31,2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' 
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008 of 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated March 2, 2009 expressed an 
unqualified opinion thereon. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
March 2, 2009 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009 

151 Ernst & Young LLP 
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Part III 

Item 1 O,Directors , Executive Officers. and Corporate Governance 

The information required by this Item 10 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned 
"Board of Directors" and "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" to be included in 
the Company's definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the 2009 Annual Meeting of 
Stockholders, to be held on June 11, 2009 (the "Proxy Statement"). The Company's Code of Ethics and 
Whistleblower Procedures may be found at http://www1.telecomsys.comJinvestor- info/corp­
governance.erm. 

Item 11.Executive Compensation 

The information required by this Item 11 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned 
"Board of Directors" and "Executive Compensation" to be included in the Proxy Statement. 

Item 12.Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

The information required by this Item 12 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned 
"Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management" to be included in the Proxy Statement 

Item 13.Certain RelationshIps and Related TransacUons and Director Indrmenc!ence 

The information required by this Item 13 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned 
"Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" and "General Information Concerning the Board of Directors" 
to be included in the Proxy Statement. 

Item 14.PrinciDal Accountant Fees and Services 

The information required by this Item 14 is incorporated herein by reference from the information captioned 
"Principal Accountant Fees and Services" to be included in the Proxy Statement. 
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Part IV 

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules 

(a)(1) Financial Statements 

The financial statements listed in Item 15 are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on 
page F-1. 

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules 

The financial statement schedule required by Item 15 is included in Exhibit 12 to this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K. 

Exhibits 

The exhibits are listed in the Exhibit Index immediately preceding the exhibits. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and 
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, 
stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2008. Our 
audit also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2008 
and 2007, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, 
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 31, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 2, 2009 
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
March 2, 2009 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009 
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~ 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

December 31, 
2008 

L 

December 31, 
2007 

II 
Currentas'''se'''t''s:-: --~;,;= ____ _ 

Cash and cash ~gulvalents .... "",""Oii==._L$I::]§,~7J!J j$~rl§,95~1 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $285 in 2008 and $266 

in 2007 __ ~ __ .. 61 ,?P 20,424 
Unbilled receivables ._ .. __ =n= .. [ 21 ,79~ncr:::=L 15,22lj] 
Inventory'.. 2,715 5,373 

, Deferred inco-m-e~ta-x-e-s---_-_-_____ I IlJ,73S! L._J .. .::::1] 
----other current assets 3,869 5,561 

Total currerit assets --- I [ . uJ 138,921LLI 62,54~ J 
Property and equIpment, net of accumulated depreciation and 

amortization of $41 268 in 2008 and $35,969 in 2007. 12,391 11 ,209 
Software development costs, net. of accumulated amort.iza.tion of -'~"--lr-==TI i' L I i 

$6,873 in 2008 and $4,783 in 2007 L.L.... 2,773, .. L _... 4,406; , 
Acquired intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization-o-f - --- -

$656 in 2008 and $509 in 2007 562 
Goodwill ____ .IL~::.:::J 1,81l_l 
Deferred income taxes 

[Jjlher assets 
Total assets 

):.Ia.bllities and stockholders' equily __ n ___ _ 

Current liabilities: 

24,309 
=.:.II 1,19Q j 

$ 181,959 

I_L_L ~i 

IJ 
$ 

709 

1,445 ! 
82,124 

n 
r' AccountsJ1,,~able and accrue.ct ex~enses [i1i I 3{34s'rL~f2,~5~ 

Accrued payroll and relate<!..!iabilities 17,243 4,915 
Deferred revenue I 1:-1 4,34~ LI __ ._ 4,68!j ! 
Current portion of capitallea'se obligations and neites payable 3,837 5,444 

Total current liabilities . . I I I 59,77'1 II i1,5Q3" 
I ~:o~~~:~~' ~~~~ions and notes payabl~. ~:~""entPortionn[C~_ .. Ju7,91~1~~1Q,6571 ' 

. Class A Common Stock; $0,01 par value: ....._. __ 
I'-Authorized shares ,.225,000,000; issued and outstanding II... .. [. 
~ shares of 38,527,234 in 2008 and 34,970,394 in 2007 I I ..... 

I: ;----1 
385, I , 

Cfas~ B Common Stoc_~;.$O.01 par value: - n_ __ _______ • • 

1,--'"'~A"'uthOriZed shares 75,000,000; issued and outstanding .. 'I [ .[ .. ""'6"91"1 
'n shares of 6,87.6,334 in 2008 and 7,301,334JrrXooI 74: I 

~~~~~~t~~i~i~~~~i~-~-re-he-n-s-iv-e-iricomel(losS}---- - - II n _ljjlJ,5~~1 '1":~~IU:~~~1 
Accumulated deficit u, (126,753).L..L.-~ (184,321) 

I==:::""otal stockholders' equit~_____ ' ____ LIIff4;272[TT I u 43,96'![J 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 181,959 $ 82,124 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
(amounts in thousands, except per share data) 

Year Ended December 31, 
2008 2007 2006 

~evenu-ec--__ _ ___ I] J [[ I 1._U_Il_ -[ I 
Services $ 101,359 $ 88,062 $ 88,380 

[ Sys1ems -----_____ II 1118,7831 [ TJ 56,101> I .T i 36;55[l 
Total revenue 220,142 144,168 124,936 

Pi_recTcosfs of reve,!1ue -
Direct cost of serv-ices-----·- .. ---· 
DirectCost of systems, fncluding amortization of software 

development costs of $2,090, $1,522 and $1,273, 
res ective!Y __ --:-__ _ 

Total direct cost of revenue 

~~_rVlcesgLoss pro_fj~ . ____ ~~=_~~=-
Systems gross profit 

1_:=.J.<>lalgrosspjoJ;L __ 

ILl I I I L ...1 I Ii. IJ 
61 594 52,161 52,540 

[[ [ 77:291[111 37,90J [ 17,8~J ! 
138,885 

ILL~39,76s,-I 
41,492 

_LIT 81,257il 

90,067 70,423 
i[ 3Sc9011TLI35,84O: 

18,200 18,673 
I 54,f511T i 54,513' 

Operating costs~.nd expenses .. 
!.I3~search and_develoll.rTlentexpense____:'.L.I 16,1611 [ i [ 13,07Z :1.gJ;!j~:: 
,.Saiesandmarketirlll"~pense ... . .. __ .... [ 13,715

1
, .. ,-c-:n:911' I' J121~ 

'General and ad_minisJraJive expenSl' .. _____ . .. __ -'L 28,238,[ .. L_L~~3, : 1§~5jLI 
.. _P~~~~q_iation and amortiz9ti.on of property an~_eguipment 5,865 6,200 7,956 

Amortizatio"-"fa.c-,,uired intangible a-"_s"ts.,, r-- -f471LI I 148' i: 1471 ! 

_. TotalQQerating costsand,,>g:>enses . 64 126 50,671. 49,360 
[.Gain on sale of!'.atent _ I I I B~660rL I I :::fl.1 I---=n 
Op""ating income/(lo.s) 25,191 3,430 . . 5 153 
jnterest eXRense . . Ir-r-J922[ITI.J1,77!jfllTJt:r!>.1DJ 
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, 

including write-off of $2,458 in 2007 
12.ther.inco,,,m,,,eL' n",e~t __ _ II 

(180) 
miJ 

(:3,176) (1,447) 
T· 50&J .1 I 2~1 

Income/(Ioss) from continUing operations before income 

l3et~;~t"irom income taxes _ _ [ I ~j:~~n I r- (1 'O;';-UT L9~! 
IncomelH9ss) from contin.~.ing operations ~568 (1,014) 1,976 
,loss/rom_discontinued 91l."""tion§ .______ __ I I T' =-l L (275) I I i (23,671D r 
Netincome/(loss) $ 57,568 $ (1,289) $ (21,695) 

Income/(lossLper-"l'a.re - ba~ic: .. _______ 1 [-I '._1 I I I. [[U __ D 
Inc0rTle/(loss) per share fr.om continuing~erations $ 1.34 $ (0 . .02) ___ $ 0.05 
~o=~-"r share fro",discontinuedoperatioiis . II i =-l I I I (O,OWLI I (0,6(j) I 
Net income/(loss) per share - basic $ 1,34 $ (0,03) $ (0,55) 

,lnc;()me/(lossl.per share diluted:. _ I:O= ___ .LL [ _ r n..::::::rLLL__ _ Ii 
Income/(loss2J~~r._share from continuing operations $ 1.23 _ t (0.02l $ 0.05 
!,.<>s.sper share from discontirlUe~-"ll.erations _]I: =l L [ r (0,0111 I I (0,5921 
Net income/(lo.s) per share-diluted $ 1.23 $ (0.03) $ (0,54) 

~h\ed average sharesoutsjandliig-basic- ..... ___ ==::rn43,Qt;:iLlT41;·153[ [ [ ';l9~43o'J 
Weigiited average shares outstanding-diluted 46,644 41,453 40,166 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

Class A Class B 
Common Common Doforrod 
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Paid-In 
Capital 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprohonsivo 
Income (Loss) 

Accumulated 
Delicit 
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Class A Common 
Stock under 
Employee Stock 
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n
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i 1,750,000 shares I' I 
I ~fo~_~;nAs~ ~ __ _ I JI/ I JI /3,]/lmJ JII J __ ~TO 
Surrender of 67,827 

restricted shares of 
Class A Common 
Slack as payment 
for pay fall lax 
wilhholdings_ 

Fonversion of 
510,291 shares of 

I Class B Common 

I ~:~~t~n~~~;;: ! 
Stock compensaTion 

expense for 
issuance of 
Class A Common 
Stock options for 
continuing 

Til-i
l

l( 1f
t 

~ --_:1--
~ II (~ 

I 
I 
I 

_=:1 

(1B6) ;------q 

I,

' i 
I! 

.,L 

;;o-.,-----,---:::;-,.---,-.:::;-,r' 1- ] III '] II [~-----"-----.:::ilJ '] 
Vesting or employee 

rai~E}:;:~:~~"=':::'"""t l----,-==-'J~ 1_ Jl' ]][---"--1" _ 244,J --_I1_ _--T
1

: JI 
~ no.".-e. mPI.OY. ees for 
l_~~~lce _ _ 
Foreign currency 

244 

]1 
__ L_J 

translation 

2ard~ju~s~tm~e"}t~~==[=L_L-;; 1===c~trJ:======~~ l==:C====~JJ=====r==~'~OLL.L-_J:~~~[rr=IJ~~'O~ t"_eUo"fo,2006 [T I '-1.11 """"l [ 1 -Ill =i II =1[ [ T (21,69511! I (21,69S)] 
Balance at 

December 31, 

rl:~J~:j;:J.:of ·1322IjiT--IlTfl--I$r17'7391 [[$ J 1$ 
_yommon Stock! I 14, 1 ___ L1U ___ J _L_ccl __ -,,'61 ..L___I 

.l1~ 35,105 i 

.. JIu]J 
Issuance of 

173,633 shares of 
Class A Common 
Stock under 
Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan 2 

"txerase-ofwarrnnts' --:-g-- ----- -~': 

I 
to purchase I I I 

8BS,7B7 shares of I l .... 1 Class A Common , 
____. . ___ .LL--'---'-'-'-_L . __ 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009 



CS§:t9c~~k~:::~~::;~~=~~ ~TIII=r=CII[]I=CJ~r ~~~ ~rllnJ __ ~II=~ =:=CII:JI==r==-:~ UL:~'I -~I~ILC~-=~TJ 
Surrender of 19,358 

restricted shares of 
Class A Common 
Stock as payment 
for payroll tax 

_~!b!J_C?rdil!gs _ 
Conversion of I 

224,336 shares of 
Class B Common 

: Siock to Class A 
Common Siock J __ 

Siock compensation 
expense for 
issuance of 
Class A Common 
Stock options for 
continuing 

_I ~~~J II --'-------=ll JJJ ], 

~~;JL~:LLLIL _,1111 !JL ']lJi! r'] 
Unrealized loss on 

securities and 
other (125) (125L 

,Net loss '.0[.20_Q7 1_L:l3 i l·N -r- =JI[I ==r=::3~lr~[1 =r::::=::33:::LDI==Jr=~3DLll==r=l]{tg.2~8~9)[]JJI:J:I :J]{t~.2~8!9nb 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2007 $ 349 $ 74 $ 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K, March 03, 2009 

$ 227,987 $ (125) $ (184,321) $ 43,964 
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the purchase of 
1,927,284 shares 
of Class A 
Common Stock 

Issuance of 
134,000 shares of 
Class A Common 
Stock under 
Employee Stock 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share data) 

Clas5 A 
Common 

51 k __ 0_'_ 

! 
, 

... L18 

Class B 
Common 

5 k ~ 

II 
'1 

II 
~i 

Deferred 
C II om~ensa 0" 

I = j 

Additional 
Pald..jn 
C II I ae a 

5,85 

ncome 0," 

Accumulaled 
Other 

Comprehensive 
I (L I 

Accumulated 
on II , , 

Purchase Plan 1 451 

T I' 0. 

, 

5,87 
] 
452 

r. ~e.;~.;.~.~~.~:.earrant.' 1- '-1-fT] 'I----nllirr 
~:~~:1:.:::·' ,_ J1 ...... ~ I ._ LLL',51J II .. l ... dd 

"-fITj. -il. I I I ! 

I 
I I 

I I I j II I ',521 1 
Conversion of --

425,000 shares of 
Class B Common 
Stock to Class A 
Common Stock 5 (5) 

rl~f~~~~~;,:i:n ,- ]rllJ II 
Unrealized'!,o"',"','co="...l·, 

securities and 

··I]lr·I··3'75~L~DI_[·.. J. Jj~_32]J 
other 137 137 

~~clR_in~.c~o~m~e~fo~']'~OO~8DIJI==~~-Ij:I[~JJJI====r=~33JI.lI~·~IC===~33JIJI====r=~~~1111~~·II:J5~72,5~6~[=CIII=r=5~7~,5~~~J 
Balance at 

December 31, 
2008 $ 365 $ 69 $ $ 240,559 =$ ___ ---""" $ (126,753) $ 114,272 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc, 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
(amounts in thousands) 

Year Ended December 31, 
2008 2007 2006 

:Q~eratirig~~iI"Jtles:~_':::"-'::=-~'::-=~=-~=TL 1. II r I ___ TI_O= _IJ 
",,\income/(Ioss) ____ ._.__________ $ 57,568 $ (1,289) $ (21,695) 
[ Less: LossJrorn discon1inued opera1ions •. I I I·-n--=crrr (275~ I I [(2:3,671DJ 

_Income/lloss) from continuing.op_erations. 57,56Jl.. ..(L014) 1,976 

rd~~~t~~~~s ~~tj~~~~:~il_e_ net loss to net cash provided bY__ _ JJ l [LLI 111_001 n 
De reciation and c:lmortization of property and eq~ment __ 00 _ 5,865 6,200 _ 7,956 
Amortizalio"-,,fac:guired intangibl .. ." ... sets . -=':"_. __ lL_Lilll_ I I 14/\ i 11 __ 1471! 

I Sci~~~:{ht~~o~~nc":~pensation_e~R. .. ~··eir1Plo~ee__ II I ~~~~)TTT3,96:J1TJJ--:f116]~ 
Non-cash stock compen~_a!jon eXRense - non-emQloyee _ __ _ __ _ _ 370 

1 __ fl..m.ortiz~tiQn of softwaredev:elap.n~nlc()st§=~ -.. I I 2,0~0;TT!:J,§22Ir-1 ! 1,273: 
Amortization of debt discount - 480 960 
Amortization:.of~~irrealfii~ilcfllgfees .. _._-='::~LL=-lB1[LJJ 313; I : L'f!i7ii 
Impairment_Q.(r:narketable securities _ _ _ _ ______ _____ __ 802 

.Write-off of unamortized debt disc,)unt and debt issuance feeill J :::rr'-I··· 2~45!tL~..=:u 
Other non-cash (income)/expenses .... (~ - 19 (17) 

I. Changes in operating assets and liabiliji,,~: I I I [TI-.n I I T I I I 
Accounts receivable, net (41,403) 1,120 (65!l) 

1 ___ .tJ.rlbilied receivables ~. _____ r11 (6;§.®~TIJ.J7Mj)IJJ_(1,275f 
Inventory ... . . ..... _ 2,658 (80) .. (2,094) 

[--Othe,_c.l!l:'"nt.assets__ . _______ 1L1_ ~5~ I (1 ,87Q)J J':: 1.1.9.2;_; 
Other noncurrent assets 187 541 111 

1- l\cco~nLspayableand accrued eXl'enSeS I r: u

Zl)l8B;1.-
u

-2,0.3.B;_r:--1 u __ 246:1 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities _12.,318. ,. . (748) 1,302 

. Deferred revenue ... -- .. [ (336')i_ I 1,200,1 (638) I 

Net cash provided by op~r~tJ.l1g activities of cOlltinu_i.n9 operations __ 26.l9;3§ _ _ 9,067 13,044 
iNet·used in operating activities otdisconfiiiued operations Li I =! r.::-r (3);98)1 . r (8,037i) 
Total net cash provided by operating activities 26,036 5,469 5,007 

~nv_es!in.g actlvllies:____ .. ----ILl· II LI ___ LLLL....:_..:..l~ 
Purchases of property and e'll'ipment (3,703).. (2~577l (2,760) 
~~pitalized softwar~ developmeritcosts I I (4610 LJ I (1,525 I I I (1,849) [ 
Netca_~_h used in investing activities of c_ontinuing 0 erations 4,164 (4,102) _____ (4,609 

IN~pC:r~~ib~~vided bY~(USed) ~~_~nvesting -activities of discontinue~ [[-- ~!~od -I 1,442!J 

Net cash used in investing activities (4,164) (102) (6,051) 

fLnjlnclng acti"Ities: . ... .. I I L I I LJ II I I .. U 
Proceeds from issuance of long-ter:!Tl debt 10,000 16,000 
IPayments on long,!<'!.rrn!lebt and capital lease obligatiol1.s_ ... _. r I (1 ,(95)IIIllEmL,--L(~,589:l1 
Proceeds from/(payments on) draws on revolving line of credit, 

fiR~~Cing fee.s rei." .. -ted.t.o -Is-suan.c.--e.·. O .. n{ClaSS ACommon--Stock and I rn-r---.----.. --T- -I' j II ,1- 1 -(~-,Q9-4r -I' 
I. Convertible subordinated debentures I ! . :::::l .. __ =-,_Lj1,470)! 
Proceeds from exercise ofwarra-nts------------------- -- 2,521- - 2,208 

r~~~ec~ds from exer~i~~_~~~:~I~Y~e stock options ~~_d __ s_a_l_e o~~l'- j"" 6,32J _I ! r--'4","'0"'1 8;1~-rl-,I--7-3-l~ 
Net cash provided by financing activities of C9!:1.\.inuing operations 1, 150 __ ._~.~o __ 1,668 

__ ~;r~~ib~~~~ded by financing a~t~ities ~~~SCO~~i~~ed I.l 1 J I 1 I J 1...1 I 58! r 

Net cash provided by financing activities 1,150 230 1,726 

[Eff~ct -of ~x.change.rat.~s -on c-ash--and caSh--e .. Q-u.--lvalents .or-. -Tn, I IJ i. --- -lJ·. I.f. . . .-.. r.1 
L_Q)scQ!ltlnued oper?.tlons _ _ _ _ _ ______ ~_---.J =iJ _j _____ -=l__ . j _. . ~§7j 
Net increase in cash from continuing op-erations 23,022 5J 1_95 10,103 

~. e.t i".c.r,: .. ase/(deCreaSe) in cash from -etiscontin. ued 1.1 1 } .. 11 ... 1 1 -_ .. -·-rji 1 c 1 
I .o~eratlons . .... ::::J ... 402..'. (9,06~ 
Net increase in cash 

~as~nd ~~s~ equivale_nt.s:_~.t!b.~J2~ginnin9._qLtb~ year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Source: TELECOMMUNICATION SY, 10-K. March 03, 2009 

$ 38,977 $ 15,955 $ 10,358 



See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. develops and applies highly reliable wireless data communications 
technology. We manage our business in two segments, Commercial and Government: 

Commercial Segment. Our carrier software system products enable wireless carriers to deliver 
premium services including short text messages, location information, internet content, and other 
enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones. We provide enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) 
services, commercial location-based services, and inter-carrier text message distribution services on a 
hosted, or service bureau basis. As of December 31,2008, we provide hosted services under contracts 
with more than 40 wireless carrier networks and Voice-over-Internet-Protocol (VoIP) service providers. 
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic 
application which is available via all major US wireless carriers. We earn carrier software-based 
systems revenue through the sale of licenses, deployment and customization fees and maintenance 
fees. Pricing is generally based on the volume of capacity purchased from us by the carrier. We also 
provide carrier technology on a hosted, Le., service bureau basis; that is, customers use our software 
functionality through connections to and from our network operations centers, paying us monthly based 
on the number of subscribers, cell sites, or call center circuits, or message volume. 

Government Segment. We provide communication systems integration, information technology 
services, and software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers. 
We design, assemble, sell and maintain satellite-based network communication systems, including our 
SwiftLink® deployable communication systems which incorporate high speed, encrypted, Internet 
Protocol technology. We also own and operate secure satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to 
satellite airtime (known as space segment). 

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the U.S. requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts and related disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of our wholly 
owned subsidiaries. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less when purchased. Cash equivalents are reported at fair value, which 
approximates cost. 

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts Receivable. Substantially all of our accounts receivable are trade 
receivables generated in the ordinary course of our business. We use estimates to determine the amount of 
the allowance for doubtful accounts necessary to reduce accounts receivable to their expected net realizable 
value. We estimate the amount of the required allowance by reviewing the status of significant past-due 
receivables and by establishing provisions for estimated losses by analyzing current and historical bad debt 
trends. Changes to our allowance for doubtful accounts are recorded as a component of general and 
administrative expenses in our accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations. Our credit and 
collection policies and the financial strength of our customers are critical to us in maintaining a relatively small 
amount of write-offs of receivables. We generally do not require collateral from or enter netting agreements 
with our customers. Receivables that are ultimately deemed uncollectible are charged-off as a reduction of 
receivables and the allowance for doubtful accounts. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

Inventory. We maintain inventory of component parts and finished product for our Government deployable 
communications systems. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is based on the weighted 
average method. The cost basis for finished units includes manufacturing cost. 

Investments in Marketable Securities and Note Receivable. The Company received a $1,000 note and 
some marketable securities as partial consideration from three small divestitures during 2007. The marketable 
securities, now valued at $78, are included in other current assets and are classified as available-far-sale in 
accordance with the provision of SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity 
Securities. These securities are carried at fair market value based on quoted market price. For the year ended 
December 31, 2007, the Company reported $152 net unrealized losses in stockholders' equity as a component 
of accumulated other comprehensive income. During 2008, the Company has determined that the losses in fair 
market value of marketable securities held were other-than-temporary and wrote down the value of these 
securities by approximately $802, which the write-down is included in Other income, net. Gains or losses on 
securities sold will be based on the specific identification method. The note receivable was reported in other 
current assets for 2007 and was collected in full in November of 2008, including interest at 8.25%. 

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of equipment, 
generally five years for furniture and fixtures and three to four years for computer equipment, software and 
vehicles. Our depreciable asset base includes equipment in our network operations centers related to our 
hosted service offerings, development costs for computer software for internal use, and company-wide 
computer hardware. Amortization of leasehold improvements is provided using the straight-line method over 
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the remaining term of the lease. Assets held under capital leases are 
stated at the lesser of the present value of future minimum lease payments or the fair value of the property at 
the inception of the lease. The assets recorded under capital leases are amortized over the lesser of the lease 
term or the estimated useful life of the assets in a manner consistent with our depreciation policy for owned 
assets. 

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of assets of acquired businesses. 
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination is not amortized, but instead is evaluated annually for 
impairment using a discounted cash flow model in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. 

Software Development Costs. We capitalize software development costs after we establish technological 
feasibility, and amortize those costs over the estimated useful lives of the software beginning on the date when 
the software is available for general release. Acquired technology, representing the estimated value of the 
proprietary technology acquired, has also been recorded as capitalized software development costs. 

Costs we incurred are capitalized when technological feasibility has been established. For new products, 
technological feasibility is established when an operative version of the computer software product is 
completed in the same software language as the product to be ultimately marketed, performs all the major 
functions planned for the product, and has successfully completed initial customer testing, Technological 
feasibility for enhancements to an existing product is established when a detail program design is completed. 
Costs that are capitalized include direct labor, related overhead and other direct costs. These costs are 
amortized on a product-by-product basis using the straight-line method over the product's estimated useful life, 
which has not been greater than three years. Amortization is also computed using the ratio that current 
revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that product (the 
revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount 
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. Our policies to 
determine when to capitalize software development costs and how much to amortize in a given period require 
us to make subjective estimates and jUdgments. If our software products do not achieve the level of market 
acceptance that we expect and our future revenue estimates for these products change, the amount of 
amortization that we record may increase 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

compared to prior periods. The amortization of capitalized software development costs has been recorded as a 
cost of revenue. 

Acquired technology is amortized over the product's estimated useful life based on the purchase price 
allocation and valuation procedures performed at the time of the acquisition. Amortization is calculated using 
the ratio of the estimated future cash flows generated in each period to the estimated total cash flows to be 
contributed from each product or the straight-line method, whichever is greater. 

For 2008,2007, and 2006 we capitalized $461, $1,525, and 1,849, respectively, of software development 
costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological feasibility had been 
reached but before the products were available for general release. Accordingly, these costs have been 
capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the products are 
available for general release. The capitalized costs relate to our location-based software. 

We believe that these capitalized costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these 
products. 

The Company capitalizes all costs related to software developed or obtained for internal use when 
management commits to funding the project and the project completes the preliminary project stage. 
Capitalization of such costs ceases when the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended use. 

Acquired Intangible Assets. Acquired intangible assets have useful lives of 5 to 19 years. We are 
amortizing these assets using the greater of the straight-line method or the revenue curve method. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets. Long-lived assets, including intangible assets, are reviewed for 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or 
group of assets may not be fully recoverable. 

If an impairment indicator is present, we evaluate recoverability by a comparison of the carrying amount of 
the assets to future undiscounted net cash flows that we expect to generate from these assets. If the assets 
are impaired, we recognize an impairment charge equal to the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds 
the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying values or fair values, 
less estimated costs of disposal. 

Other Comprehensive Income/Loss. Comprehensive income/loss includes changes in the equity of a 
business during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-owner sources. 
Other comprehensive income/loss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles are included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For 
operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial statements in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results of 
operations and cash flows are translated at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and 
liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates. Translation adjustments for our European subsidiary 
are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss in stOCkholders' equity. Also included 
are any unrealized gains or losses on marketable securities that are classified as available-far-sale. Total 
comprehensive income/(Ioss) for each of the three years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, was not 
materially different than consolidated net income/(Ioss). 

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is generated from our two segments as described below. 

Services Revenue. Revenue from hosted services consists of monthly recurring service fees and is 
recognized in the month earned. Revenue from subscriber service fees is recognized in the period earned. 
Maintenance fees are collected in advance and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is 
typically annual. Any unearned revenue, including unrecognized maintenance fees, is included in deferred 
revenue. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

We also recognize services revenue from the design, development and deployment of information 
processing and communication systems primarily for government enterprises. These services are provided 
under time and materials contracts, cost plus fee contracts, or fixed price contracts. Revenue is recognized 
under time and materials contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price 
service contracts are accounted for using the proportional performance method. These contracts generally 
allow for monthly billing or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses on 
contracts are recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. 

Systems Revenue. We deSign, develop, and deploy communications systems. These systems may include 
packaged software licenses. Systems typically contain multiple elements, which may include the product 
license, installation, integration, and hardware. The total arrangement fee is allocated among each element 
based on vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value of each of the elements. Fair value is generally 
determined based on the price charged when the element is sold separately. In the absence of evidence of fair 
value of a delivered element, revenue is allocated first to the undelivered elements based on fair value and the 
residual revenue to the delivered elements. The software licenses are generally perpetual licenses for a 
specified number of users that allow for the purchase of annual maintenance at a specified rate. All fees are 
recognized as revenue in accordance with Statement of Position 97-2, Software Revenue Recognition 
(SOP 97-2) when four criteria are met. These four criteria are (i) evidence of an arrangement (ii) delivery has 
occurred, (iii) the fee is fixed or determinable and (iv) the fee is probable of collection. Software license fees 
billed and not recognized as revenue are included in deferred revenue. Systems containing software licenses 
include a 90-day warranty for defects. We have not incurred significant warranty costs on any software product 
to date, and no costs are currently accrued upon recording the related revenue. 

Systems revenue is also derived from fees for the development, implementation and maintenance of 
custom applications, Fees from the development and implementation of custom applications are generally 
performed under time and materials and fixed fee contracts. Revenue is recognized under time and materials 
contracts and cost plus fee contracts as billable costs are incurred. Fixed-price product delivery contracts are 
accounted for using the percentage-of-completion or proportional performance method, measured either by 
total costs incurred as a percentage of total estimated costs at the completion of the contract, or direct labor 
costs incurred compared to estimated total direct labor costs for projects for which third-party hardware 
represents a significant portion of the total estimated costs. These contracts generally allow for monthly billing 
or billing upon achieving certain specified milestones. Any estimated losses under long-term contracts are 
recognized in their entirety at the date that they become evident. Revenue from hardware sales to our monthly 
subscriber customers is recognized as systems revenue. 

Under our contracts with the U.S. government for both systems and services, contract costs, including the 
allocated indirect expenses, are subject to audit and adjustment by the Defense Contract Audit Agency. We 
record revenue under these contracts at estimated net realizable amounts. 

Our accounting for revenues from systems and services contracts not accounted for under SOP 97-2 or the 
proportional performance of percentage of completion methods, follows the guidance of Emerging Issues Task 
Force 00-21 "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables" (EITF 00-21) for determining of the number of 
units of accounting and the allocation of the total fair value among the multiple elements. 

Deferral of Costs Incurred. We defer direct costs incurred in certain situations as dictated by authoritative 
accounting literature. In addition, if the revenue for a delivered item is not recognized because it is not 
separable from the arrangement, then we defer incremental costs related to that delivered but unrecognized 
element. Deferred costs are included in other current assets on the balance sheet. 

Advertising Costs. Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense totaled $1, $34, and 
$29, for the years ended December 31, 200B, 2007, and 2006, respectively. 
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued) 
(amounts in thousands, except share and per share data) 

Capitalized Interest. Total interest incurred was $1,120, $5,026, and $3,253 for the years ended 
December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Approximately $18, $74, and $55 of total interest incurred 
was capitalized as a component of software development costs during the year ended December 31, 2008, 
2007, and 2006 respectively. 

Stock~Ba5ed Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are 
described more fully in Note 17. 

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123(R) 
("Statement No. 123(R)") requires us to report all share based payments to employees, including grants of 
employee stock options in the income statement based on their fair value. We adopted Statement No. 123(R) 
effective January 1, 2006 using the modified prospective method. 

Research and Development Expense. We incur research and development costs which are primarily 
comprised of compensation and travel expenses related to our engineers engaged in the development and 
enhancement of new and existing software products. All costs are expensed as incurred prior to reaching 
technological feasibility. 

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and liability method of 
accounting for income taxes as prescribed by SFAS 109. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are 
expected to reverse. 

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes" 
(FIN 48) which prescribes a minimum recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial 
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, 
measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting interim periods, disclosure and transition. If a 
tax position does not meet the more-likely-than-not initial recognition threshold, no benefit is recorded in the 
financial statements. Upon the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the estimated value of the Company's 
uncertain tax positions was a liability of $2.7 million resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not 
include interest and penalties. The Company recorded the estimated value of its uncertain tax position by 
reducing the value of certain tax attributes. The Company would classify any interest and penalties accrued on 
any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or 
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31,2008 and 2007 or 
the consolidated balance sheet at December 31,2008 and 2007. The Company files income tax returns in 
U.S. and state jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state 
jurisdictions date back to 1999, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company's major categories of financial assets and liabilities 
subject to fair value measurements include cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities that are held 
as available for sale. Both categories use observable inputs only and are measured using a market approach 
based on quoted prices, see Note 14. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. 

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, "Fair Value Measurements," which defines fair value, 
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. 
SFAS 157 was effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,2007. In February 2008, the FASB 
decided to issue a final Staff Position to allow a one-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for non-financial 
assets and non-financial liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a 
non-recurring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 157 to exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its 
related interpretive accounting pronouncements that address leasing transactions. The adoption of SFAS 157 
for financial assets and 
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liabilities in the first quarter of 2008 did not have an effect on the Company's results of operations and financial 
position. The Company is evaluating the impact of the non-financial asset and liability provisions of this 
standard and does not expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial 
statements. In October 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 157-3, "Determining The Fair Market Value of a Financial 
Asset When the Market for That Asset is not Active" ("SFAS 157-3), which clarifies the application of 
SFAS 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate in determining fair market value 
in that market. The Company is evaluating the impact of SFAS 157-3 provisions of this standard and does not 
expect the adoption of those provisions to have a material impact on its financial statements. 

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, "Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Liabilities." 
SFAS 159 allows companies to elect to measure certain assets and liabilities at fair value and is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company did not elect the fair value measurement of 
SFAS 159. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 141(R), "Business Combinations." This standard establishes 
principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the 
identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquired and the goodwill 
acquired. This statement also establishes disclosure requirements which will enable users to evaluate the 
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS 141 (R) is effective for us for acquisitions made 
after December 31, 2008. The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard. The adoption of 
SFAS 141{R) may have a material impact on the Company's financial statements for acquisitions 
post-adoption. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial 
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51" (SFAS 160). SFAS 160 amends ARB No. 51 to establish 
accounting and reporting standards for the non controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of 
a subsidiary. It also amends certain of ARB No. 51 's consolidation procedures for consistency with the 
requirements of SFAS 141{R). This statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those 
fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The statement shall be applied prospectively as of the 
beginning of the fiscal year in which the statement is initially adopted. The adoption of SFAS 160 will not have 
a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement 133" (SFAS 161). SFAS 161 amends and expands the 
disclosure requirements of SFAS 133 with the intent to provide users of financial statements with an enhanced 
understanding of: (i) How and why an entity uses derivative instruments; (ii) How derivative instruments and 
related hedged items are accounted for under SFAS 133 and its related interpretations and (iii) How derivative 
instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning 
after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. The Company does not expect the adoption of 
SFAS 161 to have a material impact on its financial statements. 

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 162, "The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles" 
(SFAS 162). SFAS 162 is intended to improve financial reporting by identifying a consistent framework, or 
hierarchy, for selecting the principles used in the preparation of financial statements of nongovernmental 
entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP. This statement shall be effective 60 days following the 
Securities and Exchange Commission's approval of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing 
amendments to AU Section 411, "The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles". The Company is evaluating the impact of this standard and does not expect the 
adoption of SFAS 162 to have a material impact on the Company's financial statements. 
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2. Enterprise Assets~Discontinued Operations 

In 2007, the Company sold its Enterprise division operations, which had previously been included in its 
Commercial Segment. The operations and cash flows of the business have been eliminated from those of 
continuing operations and the Company has no significant involvement in the operations since the disposal 
transactions. Accordingly, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations for the Enterprise assets have been 
classified as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements in 
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or 
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (Statement No. 144). Impairment charges of $15,500 to adjust the estimated 
carrying value of Enterprise long-lived assets and goodwill were recorded during 2006 based on information 
obtained during the process of offering the operating assets for sale and the declines in the Subscriber 
businesses being sold. 

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company sold two of its three Enterprise units to strategic buyers for 
common stock in the acquiring publicly traded companies valued at approximately $1 ,000 and earn-out 
arrangements. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we wrote down the public securities to $78. The 
Company does not expect to receive material payments from the earn-out arrangement. During May 2007, the 
last Enterprise unit was sold for $4,000 in cash (of which $200 was released from escrow in June 2008), a 
$1,000 18-month note which was paid in full in November 2008, and $250 in equity interest. 

3. Income/(loss) Per Common Share 

Basic income/(Ioss) per common share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock 
outstanding during the period. Stock options to purchase approximately 2.6 million, 2.5 million and 6.5 million 
shares were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share because their inclusion would 
have been anti-dilutive for the years ended 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Because we incurred a loss 
from continuing operations in 2007 potentially dilutive securities were excluded from the computation because 
the result would be anti-dilutive. These potentially dilutive securities consist of stock options, restricted stock, 
and warrants as discussed in Notes 1 and 17. 
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The following table summarizes the computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years 
ended December 31: 

2008 

,lncome/~)J!:Q~~_~~ntif.1l!i!1g operations I $ 157,5S~ I 
Loss from discontinued operations 

2007 

WI (l,-ot4111 
(275) 

2006 

~_L-'~"7~, 
(23,S71) 

NetI9~_s~ :'-- ======="UTS7,5S@ I 1$ I (1,28!ll1 ~l(21,69ti) I 

Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted~average common 
shares outstanding 

:f:'J~Cel!~c-~ ofdilutive stock options based_ Qr}~treasury stock method 
Net effect of dilutive warrants based on treasury stock method 

43,OS3 41,453 39,430 
L I. [j,19~ I I =i I ] 1--63~1 

38S 104 
IDenominator for diluted earnings per share wejghted~average common 

shares ouJ~tandjn and assumed conversions .1s,ssJTT I 41,54J I I I 40,lsJJ 

Incomel(lossLper sha~ __ = ~asi~~ ____ _ 
ilncomel(loss) per share f!'Q!1l continuinO:gC:oO:pO:e"'ra"ti"'o"'ns;O--­
Loss per share from discontinued operations 

=rl: I 
Nefin9qml;!!nQ_!~1-,~er share basic -----------~I I I: I 
Income/(Ioss) Rer share - diluted: 
;lnc9_,-!!!31(~~er share from continiiln-g QRerati"'o'"ns"---_____ _ 
Loss per share from discontinued-o-peralions 

___ --- 1 -~_1. 

,Neflncom\3Woss)- per share~diluted_ .. [$ I 

4. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infonnation 

1.3~ I ~ 1 (Q.02~1 -ITON.,] 
(0.01) (O.SO) 

1,3~ I $1 (0.03)1 $ I (620! 

1.~r'$I(OAD--'::JT O.O~j 
(0.01) (0.59) 

1.i:J L L~_~ I (0.50)1 

Property and eq uipment acquired under capital leases totaled $3,343, $1,979, and $1,725 during the years 
ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. 

As partial consideration for our 2007 divestitures, we received publicly trade common stock in two of the 
acquiring companies valued at approximately $1,000 at the time of January 2007 closing on the transactions. 
During 2008, the Company returned a portion of the common stock of one of the acquiring companies in 
settlement of a divestiture post closing adjustment claim. We recorded a $140 expense as part of this 
settlement. 

Interest paid totaled $922, $1,002, and $607 during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, 
respectively. 

Alternative minimum income taxes and estimated state income taxes paid totaled $559 during 2008. No 
income taxes were paid for 2007 and 2006. 

5, Unbilled Receivables 

Unbilled receivables consist of the excess of revenue earned in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles over the amounts billable at contract milestones. Substantially all un billed receivables are 
expected to be billed and collected within twelve months. 
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6. Inventory 

Inventory consisted of the following at December 31 : 

2008 2007 

Component P?r:t~ ~ $ 11,76~ i [Jb670L J 
Finished goods 

I Total inventory at_ }o'ea~ el]~ 

952 2,703 ==========-:.. .-.-.L~*=Ii1L~,rIJ§i]:clW:I~5~,3~73b: 1 

7, Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31: 

;Con:!puter eg,.u,!,ip",m"e",n,,-t ___ _ 
________ ---.--;::::;=:20~0:"8;;;::, 2007 

L$,.28,456[-1 ,$ I ~4,~~tJ 
18,408 16,360 ==========IJ rr:2:521[j J I 2,55~ 1 

Computer software 
,Furniture and fixtures 

[Land 
Leasehold improvements 3,168 2,760 

I TT1,9.9JlTTI 1,00Q 1 
Vehicles 

l __ Totarp=ro"'pCCe"rty=.=nd""eq=u"ip=m=en"t-c."t=co=s"t="'Y·t cce=.~"'r=~~d 
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 

r-- N~rprQliirt~ and equipment at }o'ear end 

107 107 
----------,lI;=. =;-1""5"'3~-76.§.":; 1 T J 47,17~ 1 

________ ---.---ii'''T'(~41¥,2~65'8;) (35,969) 
_______ ---"_~~ .. ..LJ.c1~2.,e::39::.!!1[Ilfl~ 

8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs 

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs consisted of the following: 

December 31. 
2008 

GroS5 Gr05S 

December 31. 
2007 

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated 
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization 

1\cquiregint.ngible._;:;ss"'e"'ts=: -_'LTL='_"'--,"'. "' ... "'_ '=i-[,[-TJ= .. "':1';' .. =. =. '-['! r r::=.JTr=J._ . ..J.l; .. --~- 1 
Customer Lists $ 606 $ 521 $ 85 $ 606 $ 

I Tr.dem.riisIpafe,,!'--___ LLmL_ 612: I 113{1 L[ .. 41'7;1 L .1 61~1 
Software development costs, 

including acquired 
technology 
- fotal 

Estimated future amortization e.xpens-e: 

405 $ 201 
1 04: r~-- :---- 508: 

nr II 
$ 1,845 
:$1 78~ 1 
$ 227 

1 $1 8Q 1 
$ 80 

Year ending December 3f, 200S -- -
Year ending December 31, 2010 
Year ending December 31. 2011_ 
Year ending December 31, 2012 
Year ending December 31, 20t3 
Thereafter -- ~====--:::::UL1!!JJ 

$ 3,335 
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We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized. 
Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining useful lives of 
the respective assets. 

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Our accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at December 31: 

ACf_~_m~_~ayab.t!3_ 
Accrued expenses 

2008 2007 

__________ -=-_I_~~~ : - ~ [ 5,848: [ 
13,122 6,611 

.:]~ r~~~,45~! 

Accrued expenses consist primarily of costs incurred for which we have not yet been invoiced, accrued 
sales taxes, and amounts due to our E9-1-1 customers that we have billed and collected from regulating 
agencies on their behalf under cost recovery arrangements. 

10. Line of Credit 

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003. In June 2007, we 
amended the agreement to extend our line of credit and decrease the cost of borrowing. Under the amended 
agreement, the availability of the line was extended to June 2010, and the borrowing rate decreased from 
prime plus 1.25% to the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per annum at December 31, 200B. Our maximum 
borrowing availability remained the same at $22,000. Borrowings at any time are limited to an amount based 
principally on accounts receivable levels and a working capital ratio, each as defined in the amended line of 
credit agreement. The line of credit available is also reduced by the amounts of letters of credit outstanding 
which totaled $2,260 at December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007 we had no borrowings 
outstanding under the line of credit and we had approximately $19,300 and $11,000, respectively, of unused 
borrowing availability under this line. 

Our amended line of credit and term loan agreement contains covenants requiring us to maintain a 
minimum adjusted quick ratio and a minimum liquidity ratio as well as other restrictive covenants including, 
among others, restrictions on our ability to merge, acquire assets above prescribed thresholds, undertake 
actions outside the ordinary course of our business (including the incurrence of indebtedness), guarantee debt, 
distribute dividends, and repurchase our stock, and maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth. The 
agreement also contains a subjective covenant that requires (i) no material adverse change in the business, 
operations, or financial condition of the Company occur, or (ii) no material impairment of the prospect of 
repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the agreement; or (iii) no material impairment of value or 
priority of the lenders security interests in the collateral of the bank credit agreement. As of December 31, 
200B, we were in compliance with the covenants related to our line of credit and we believe that the Company 
will continue to comply with its restrictive covenants. If our performance does not result in compliance with any 
of these restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be 
no assurance that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under its agreement with us, including 
declaring all outstanding debt due and payable. 

In December 2006, we borrowed $5,000 under 3-year notes secured by accounts receivable of one 
customer. Effective March 2B, 200B, we prepaid this debt in full and modified the terms of the note to a line of 
credit. Under the line of credit agreement, the maximum indebtedness of the line is equal to $1,700 at 
December 31, 200B less $150 per until the maturity date of December 2B, 2009. The borrowing rate is the 
London InterBank Offered Rate (UBOR) plus 500 basis points. As of December 31,2006, the Company has 
not borrowed against this line. 
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11, Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31: 

2008 2007 

Note payable dated June~iO(ft-aue July 1, 2012 and bearing interest at prime rate plus 0.25% 
, per annum, Se.e f!,J,'1~~L9_~§:gjption j~ .1-, L~ 
Note payable dated December 28, 2006, paid in full March 28, 2008 and modilied to a line of 

3,501 credit (see Note 10 for fUl:the~ .. descrip'"ti"onC!J)'---~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_ 
,other, paid in full Janu~.?QQ.1L _ 

Total long term debt 
'-1..--...:3::0 J [---11: 

:L~ss: cUr!"~.D~"ort .. i",o .. n~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~_ 
Non current portion of long term debt 

.. I 

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at December 31, 2008 are as follows: 

2009 
i(Jio-
2011 20:cf1"2 -------------- ...... _ .. . 

7,167 12,669 
[(i,WQlT-[T13.661D] 

$ 5,167 $ 9,008 

------- -~ --I $_ L?~Q9~U 
2,000 -==-r, 12,OOQ I 
1,167 

-~-- .. ~~-______________ L~U_X~~f??LI 

On June 25, 2007, we refinanced $10,000 of March 2006 secured notes with a five year bank term loan. 
The borrowing rate under the new term loan was the prime rate plus 0.25% per annum (3.5%1 at December 31, 
2008) and payments are due in equal monthly installments of $167 plus interest. In March 2006, we issued 
(i) $10,000 of secured notes due March 10,2009, with cash interest at 14% per annum, and (ii) warrants to 
purchase an aggregate of 1.75 million shares of our Class A Common Stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per 
share. In December 2008, the holders of 1.1 million of the warrants exercised those warrants and 1.1 million 
shares were issued. The remaining 0.7 million warrants remain outstanding and expire March 2011. The 
resulting carrying value of the debt at issuance was $6,500, net of the original discount of $3,500 which was 
being amortized to interest expense over its three-year term using the effective interest method, yielding an 
effective interest rate of 15.2%. The remaining unamortized debt discount and issuance expenses of 
$2,458 million were written off in the second quarter of 2007 as a result of early retirement of the March 2006 
note. 

12, Capital Leases 

We lease certain equipment under capital leases. Property and equipment included the following amounts 
for capital leases at December 31: 

~_ornp~-ferequli:i:rlJem__ _ ___ ~ ____ . __ ~ __ _ 
Computer sO~.1lr~ ____ _ 
,Fu-rrJ_~_~f!!~D_9---.!ixtur~ ___ ~ __ ~~----~------ - --
Leasehold improvements 
[---tof~11 equipment underca~1falleaseaf-cost- ----~~------­

Less: accu-muratedamortlZalTOil- ---- - --

lN~t_P!QPi!!Y: and equipment unc;ler capjtal_leases 

2008 2007 

LLl23 I 

Capital leases are collateralized by the leased assets. Our capital leases generally contain provisions 
whereby we can purchase the eqUipment at the end of the lease for a one dollar buyout or the current fair 
market value 
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capped at 18.5% of the original purchase price. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and 
amortization expense. 

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at December 31, 2008: 

~009 ... 
2010· 
~.o11 
2012 

.. ~.~_ ... _._J.lI1Q§S: ! 
567 

Total minimu"'I!, ... ~ayments ________ lJJ 5,100 ' 
Less: amounts representing interest (517) 

I-·Present value of net minimum lease payments (in.eluding current portion of$1",8",3"..7Ll ____ L i$14,583[ 

13. Common Stock 

Our Class A common stockholders are entitled to one vote for each share of stock held for all matters 
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Our Class B stockholders are entitled to three votes for each share owned. 

14. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

In the first quarter of 2008. we adopted SFAS 157 "Fair Value Measurements" for financial assets and 
liabilities. This standard defines fair value, provides guidance for measuring fair value, and requires certain 
disclosures. This standard does not require any new fair value measurements, but rather applies to all other 
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. This standard does not apply 
measurements related to share-based payments, nor does it apply to measurements related to inventory. 

SFAS 157 discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market prices), the 
income approach (present value of future income or cash flows), and the cost approach (cost to replace the 
service capacity of an asset or replacement cost). The statement utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes 
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a brief 
description of those three levels: 

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or 
indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted 
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active. 

Level 3: Observable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions. 

Our population of financial assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurements and the necessary 
disclosures are as follow: 

Fair Value as of 
12/31/2008 

Total 

Fair Value Measurements at 12/31/2008 
Using Fair Value Hierarchy 

Level 1 Level 2 

Assets II _ III I I 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,977 $ 38,977 
Mark_~~able_securities availa~le for ,s~ai~e_~I-,I:-_-, __ ·-:-:-::-7"~0-l1_"1 :-.1.1 ="7",,ffl 

$ 39,055 $ 39,055 
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The fair values of marketable securities are based on quoted market prices from various stock exchanges. 

15. Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes under SFAS 109 using the asset and liability approach to 
accounting for income taxes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based upon differences 
between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax 
rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Net deferred tax assets are 
recorded when it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will be realized. 

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following at December 31: 

[Current: 
Federal 

___ §~t~ _____ _ 
Total current -Deferred-: ---------. 

Federar--------­
sf~~-·---------- ----

Total deferred 
---Totcifbene1ft for j~~ome t~x.E!ifrom continuing O~~!_~!o.ns 

2008 

... UI __ II 
$ 636 

. m~!Tr··T52ii 
18§ __ , 

L ___ J.J 
(29,938 

I· Tl0·,U 
(34,045) 

--'::=0 I (33,257~J 

In previous years, the Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets due to 
uncertainty surrounding the realization of the benefits of such assets; therefore, there was no tax provision in 
2007 or 2006. For 2008, based on historical taxable income from continuing operations and projections for 
future taxable income, the Company determined that it is more likely than not that its deferred tax assets are 
expected to be realized, and reversed the valuation allowance. The reversal of the valuation allowance and 
other adjustments to the deferred tax assets resulted in the recognition of income tax benefits of $33,257 in 
2008. The $33,257 benefit is comprised of a federal benefit of $29,302 and a state net benefit of $3,955. 
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Significant components of our deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31 were: 

Deferred tax a,"s"s~eiits;:; ~::::;;::::===== 
--- -Nei ORera!i!lgj9~~s carryforwards 

2008 2007 

-T1 [ _JLIl[_~JJ 
$ 26,746 $ 38,198 

.I.lt 29~ I LL=--1.S:J 
1,513 1,635 

___ B~~~_a"~~~_.a.nd development tax credit 
Stock com ensCl_~on expense 
De reciation and '~am~o~rti~z~atif!io~nO:::=====--:­
Reserves-and a-ccrued expenses 

=========:-::--nIT-~:QKLJ_U,57~ I 
1,432 958 

i Alter!:l~!iY~ ,-Tiftlimum tax credit [.Ljl3il I IC[=r! 
Deferred revenue~ ______ _ 

[Qth~r-- . .... ____ _ 
108 813 

IT 373! IT--ll?; 
Total deferred tax assets 

pef~rre.9..!B:~Jiabilities: _ ___ ___ _ _______________ _ 
__~c=c",,35:;,' 1~8"i1 46,259 

.. : _______ U C JT II _.J-
_9~pitalize!! softw~~_~.!!!'.!l:!()pment c9_sts ____________ _ 

. __ .9ther __________ _ __________________ . .. ·---·-----[n(1,1j~ L TT.1:iJ 
TotBI deferred tax liabilities (1,136) (1,206) 

-:: __ :.[:0 134,04~ =C:::C4?,OS3[J 
(45,053) 

.: I ~ j34,oID (] ::lJ 
At December 31, 2008, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards for income tax purposes of 

approximately $81,643, which includes approximately $24,177 of remaining acquired net operating losses from 
the acquisition of Xypoint in 2001, and $9,361 from the excess tax benefits related to stock-based 
compensation deductions which will increase additional paid in capital once the benefit is realized, through a 
reduction of income taxes payable. The net operating loss carryforwards acquired in connection with the 
purchase of Xypoint in 2001 will begin to expire in 2018. The remaining net operating loss carryforwards will 
expire from 2019 through 2027. 

The timing and manner in which we may utilize the net operating loss carryforwards and tax credits in future 
tax years will be limited by the amounts and timing of future taxable income and by the application of the 
ownership change rules under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. Utilization of the Xypoint net 
operating losses are limited as a result of ownership changes occurring in 1997 and 2001. Additionally, the 
Company determined that they had an ownership change in December 2001, which imposes an annual 
limitation of the net operating losses created in 1999 to 2001. As of December 31, 2007, the Company reduced 
its deferred tax assets related to the portion of the research and development tax credits acquired from Xypoint 
that are limited under Section 382, which cannot be used before they expire. 

The remaining U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards may become subject to limitations under the 
Internal Revenue Code as well. We have state net operating loss carryforwards available which expire through 
2027, utilization of which will be limited in a manner similar to the federal net operating loss carryforwards. At 
December 31, 2008, the Company had federal alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards of approximately 
$636, which are available to offset future regular federal taxes. Research and development credits of 
approximately $294 will begin to expire in 2011. 
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The reconciliation of the reported income tax benefit to the amount that would result by applying the 
U.S. federal statutory rate of 34% to loss from continuing operations for the year ended December 31 is as 
follows: 

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the estimated value of the Company's uncertain tax positions was a liability of 
$2,736 resulting from unrecognized net tax benefits which did not include interest and penalties. It is 
reasonably possible theses unrecognized deferred tax benefits will be recognized in the next twelve months 
through the tax provision. The Company does not currently anticipate that the total amounts of unrecognized 
tax benefits will significantly increase within the next 12 months. The Company recorded the estimated value of 
its uncertain tax positions by reducing the value of certain tax attributes. 

The following table summarizes the activity related to the Company's unrecognized tax benefits (excluding 
interest, penalties and related tax carry forwards): 

Baia-nee at· December 31 ;-ZQ06 ------ -.-____ _ 
_ 9rossmcre~!ed to prior year tax-.p."os"it~io",n=sc-__ _ 

Gross decreases related to prior year tax positions _____ _ 
Gross increas"es r~rated to current year tax pOSitions 

___ §ettleme_~!~.~aps_e in statute of Um.itatio!1 
Balance at December 31,2007 

__ 9r055 increasesret~ted to·prlor year tax-~.9_sitions --­
_ .Gross decreases related to prior year tax p.2_~j!i"onC's=-__ 

Gross increases TeLat~~Jo current yea_rJ~.x p.()_~Jtions ___ . ___ . 
Settlementsflapse in statute of limitation 

Total 

. __ ":::'JT1. 
$ 

.Jrr-=n 
2,736 

I-r I 3J 
$ 2.736 

--===II I.L-=:lJ 
_ __ IT I .:.,jl 

If the Company's pOSitions are sustained by the taXing authority in favor of the Company, approximately, 
$2,736 (excluding interest and penalties) of uncertain tax position liabilities would favorably impact the 
Company's effective tax rate. 

Upon the adoption of FIN 48, the Company's policy is to classify any interest and penalties accrued on any 
unrecognized tax benefits as a component of the provision for income taxes. There were no interest or 
penalties recognized in the consolidated statement of income for year ended December 31,2008 and the 
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2008. The Company files income tax returns in U.S. and stale 
jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2008, open tax years in the federal and some state jurisdictions date back to 
1999, due to the taxing authorities' ability to adjust operating loss carry forwards. 
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16. Employee Benefil Plan 

The Company maintains a 401 (k) plan covering defined employees who meet established eligibility 
requirements. Under the provisions of the plan, the Company may contribute a discretionary match. The plan 
may also contribute a non-elective contribution determined by the Company. For 2008, the Company matched 
35% of employee deferrals. The Company contribution was $798, $575, and $218 for the years ended 
December 31.2008.2007, and 2006 respectively. 

17. Stock-based Compensation Plans 

We maintain two stock-based compensation plans: a stock incentive plan, and an employee stock purchase 
plan. 

Stock Incentive Plan. We maintain a stock incentive plan that is administered by our Compensation 
Committee of our Board of Directors. Options granted under the plan vest over periods ranging from one to five 
years and expire 10 years from the date of grant. Under the principal share-based compensation plans, the 
Company may grant certain employees, directors and consultants options to purchase common stock, stock 
appreciation rights and restricted stock units. Options are rights to purchase common stock of the Company at 
the fair market value on the date of the grant. Stock appreciation rights are equity settled share-based 
compensation arrangements whereby the number of shares that will ultimately be issued is based upon the 
appreciation of the Company's common stock and the number of awards granted to an individual. Restricted 
stock units are equity settled share-based compensation arrangements of a number of share of the Company's 
common stock. Restricted stock unit holders do not have voting rights until the restrictions lapse. 

Beginning January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) using the modified prospective method. 
Consistent with the requirements of SFAS 123(R), we recognized compensation expense net of estimated 
forfeitures over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period of 5 years. The Company 
estimates the fair value of each stock option award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of the Company's stock. The Company estimates 
forfeitures based on historical experience and the expected tenn of the options granted are derived from 
historical data on employee exercises. The risk free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in 
effect at the time of the grant. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends in the near 
future. 
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A summary of our stock option activity and related information consisted of the following for the years 
ended December 31 (all share amounts in thousands): 

Estimated 
weighted-average grant­
date fair value of options 

2008 
Weighted 
Average 

Number of Exercise 
Options Price 

11,1441 I ~13.~J II 
3,056 3.57 

(1,927V LJ L3.0~ II 
(597) 3.58 

11,67611 $ J).771 J I 
6,308 $ 4.12 

9,~9J I 
, 

i 38Jl1 ~ 

2007 2006 
Weighted Weighted 
Average Average 

Numberof Exercise Number of Exercise 
Options Price Options Price 

11,~211 ~ 136~ I [I 9,79~ I ~ L3.8l1 
2,537 3.69 2,908 2.42 
(1,341DJL~L L . c: .--,i@]! 11.75, : 
(1,668) 4.07 (880) 3.26 
11,14',[H 13.6~ I I L 11,622J I 'j;' LMA' 

6,515 $ 4.14 6,823 $ 4.33 

J 7,51Jl~ .E6J[ II'~ 8,17J ,$ ___ 3.6 j 

2.07 

! l 
granted during t .• h ... e~.,-ye.:.a:.r---,--;$=:::;=_..:;:=,,, __ , 

reighted-a-verage - I I 
remaining contractuallifell 
of options outstanding at ! l 

$ 3.69 $ 2.42 

If! l--[LJlITTI 
6.5 ye!,lf i __ ~_~_p! year _________ ,.,i _..J.;==;;.:l-.C. ___ 6.6 ~ears: I .....L. 7.0yearo, .. L .... li 

Number of 
Options 

Weighted 
Average 

Fair Value 
Number of 

Options 

Weighted Weighted 
Average Number of Average 

N9~::yested;beginning .oLye~r_ _ I i -
~F".!,:;r-;:v~,'~U~' ~c;--,==O"Pt~'O~"~.;;;;, Fair Value 

14,6921U_I 2.2~ f! l 4,79~ I 2~9{: .J 3,972~1 ~·12.33, i 

Forfeited __ ->.(5:.:2",5,) $ ,;2.~16;";="""7",:(1~,0~8~8) $ 2.37 __ -,1",73:..;.1) $ 2.03 

J ~[fJ[tB I 2.211 I .. L 1 ,579Tffi=r:IIT,i, 1 U5aITr2AJI~ r-Le~t~d _____ _ 

Exercisable, at year end 6,308 $ 3.56 6,515 $ 3.73 6,823 $ 4.01 

Non-vested, at~nd of year II 15,3611 I $ 12.2111 I I 4,69~ D~-LI .,,2 . .,,2i!"LL! 01. _ . .L14:::,:..:79",gul~$",---"I--"2",,0"'L~ 1 

Exercise prices for options outstanding at December 31,2008 ranged from $0.29 to $26.05 as follows (all 
share amounts in thousands): 

Options 

Weighted-Average 
EXercise Prices 

of Options 

Weighted-Average 
Remaining 

Contractual Life 
of Options Options 

Weighted-Average 
Exercise Prices 

of Options 
Exercise Prices Outstanding 

~O.29-$2:61 i I .. --T 2,9j~L,~: 
Outstanding Outstanding (years) Exercisable Exercisable 

$2.61~ $5.21--- 6,515 $ 
!;5.21---'$7.82 :::]'1 I 2,,,'~J $ 
$7.82 $26~05 30 $ 

_.J __ 2A_g I-I __ ==~ ___ ~._5-~-I-j __ ml 1,96~J.,t_ T -~q_-J 
3.34 6.99 2,365 $ 3.30 

:6.74 [J 5.HilJ 1'(9sq:1.~$_'_'_·_~---ii671] 
11.07 4.01 30 $ 11.07 

1 1T.676lJL ......... . _.ILL._. n L _._'ILL f6;30UC=------=-J 
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As of December 31, 2008, the aggregate intrinsic value of options exercisable was $56,348. As of 
December 31, 2008, we estimate that we will recognize $3,385 in expense for outstanding, unvested options 
over their weighted average remaining vesting period of 3.9 years. 

In calculating the fair value of our stock options using Black-Scholes for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, our assumptions were as follows: 

For The Years Ended 
December 31, 

2008 2007 

: 15,~_LL 5.5 
2.65%-3.33% 4.24%-4.90% 

2006 

·J~f-': Expected life (iD_y:e.~!SL_ 
_Risk-free intere_5.! ~aJ~.ili) 
iVol~JiJ.l~ye!~L,,", _______ _ _________ 1._.1 .. 6DO/;-6i%=r----J6B.Pl~-B3% .. "i 

4.56% 
. __ J78-%, 

0% Dividend yield(%) 0% 0% 

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company granted a total of 20,556, 89,600, 
and 22,025 of restricted shares of Class A Common Stock to directors and certain key executives. The 
restrictions expired at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for 
executives conditional on continued employment. The fair value of the restricted stock on the date of issuance 
is recognized as non-cash stock compensation expense over the period over which the restrictions expire. We 
recognized $105, $328, and $244 of non-cash stock compensation expense related to these grants for the 
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. We expect to record future stock 
compensation expense of $50 as a result of these restricted stock grants that will be recognized over the 
remaining vesting periods. 

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. We have an employee stock purchase plan (the Plan) that gives all 
employees an opportunity to purchase shares of our Class A Common Stock. The Plan allows for the purchase 
of 1,384,932 shares of our Class A Common Stock at a discount of 15% of the fair market value. The discount 
of 15% is calculated based on the average daily share price on either the first or the last day of each quarterly 
enrollment period, whichever date is more favorable to the employee. Option periods are three months in 
duration. As of December 31, 2008, 1,092,821 shares of Class A Common Stock have been issued under the 
Plan. Compensation expense relating to the Employee Stock Purchase Plan is not material. 

As of December 31, 2008, our total shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for future issuance is 
comprised of: 

§itod< incen~~J~_!an-- - -------===-~~__= __ ~ ____ _ 
Warrants~ee Note 11) 
:Employee ~fq~_~_purcha-se -pian-------- ---

Total shares restricted for future use 

(in thousands) 

.nmU __ r::--.- 4,52411 
700 ·T,-r 29Z1 

5,516 

As of December 31,2008, the composition of non-cash stock compensation expense was as follows: 

2008 2007 2006 

Direct costs of revenue --
Research and develo~me"n"'t e"'x"p"'e"n"'se"---____ _ 
Sales and marketing .B.>:pense 

General and administr"'a'"tiC've~exo;p"e:::nccse;:---
[. Total non-cash_§toc~_~ompensation expense __ 

======r::.~. 12,494[ J~);I};08(jT~-=rT50~~ 
822 867 558 

______ ---". L L171LLJ I 62~ I I L~~) 
170 758 723 

-----'L-~ =C1"'3,~75~~~1=.L14,33n::::Il3, 116[j 
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18. Operating leases 

We lease certain office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases that expire on various 
dates through 2015. Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms of one 
year or more consisted of the following at December 31, 2008: 

2009------ -

2010-2011 
201Z:zof:r . ____ _ 
ffeyond 

1 ,$13,423. I 
4,295 ---------:J -r]1~_?§QJ 

575 

___ ~~.$J,9,55:n 

Our leases include our offices in Annapolis, Maryland under a lease expiring in March 2011, a second 
facility in Annapolis under a lease expiring in April 2013, a facility in Seattle, Washington under a lease expiring 
in September 2010, a facility in Oakland, California under a lease expiring August 2012, and we relocated our 
production facility in Tampa, Florida under a lease expiring in December 2014. The Annapolis facilities are 
utilized for executive and administrative offices, as well as portions of our Commercial and Government 
Segments. The Seattle and Oakland facilities are utilized by our Commercial Segment and the Tampa facility 
is utilized by our Government Segment. Future payments on all of our leases are estimated based on future 
payments including the minimum future rent escalations, if any, stipulated in the respective agreements. 

Rent expense for continuing operations was $4,079, $3,823, and $3,603 for the years ended December 31, 
2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. 

19. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers 

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily 
of accounts receivable and unbilled receivables. Those customers that comprised 10% or more of our 
revenues, accounts receivable, and unbilled receivables from continuing operations are summarized in the 
following tables. 

% of Total Revenues 
For the Year Ended 

December 31, 

~c~u~s~to~m~e~r~~~====================~-=====~~==;s~e~g~m~e~n~t~"' _2_0_08_ _2_0_07_ 2006 
;U.S. Governm_e:~(- __________ -~ _____ J_L __ 1_t;3overnmen~ 1--[]~~1-=r=11'~3"7"'f{o'_'L---'-125:oTol 
Customer A Commercial 22% 20% 20% 

Customer 

:U.S'-G,;,;-o~v~er~n~m:e~n~t ==== 'c-usto~er A 
:CusfQm~e,,-r-,B,--_____ _ 

As of December 31, 2008 
Accounts Unbilled 

Receivable Receivables 

As of December 31, 2007 
Accounts Un billed 

Receivable Receivables 

As of December 31, 2008, our total exposure to credit risk was $69,532 based on the amount due to us by 
the above customers. As of December 31, 2007, our exposure to such risks was $23,689. We did not 
experience significant losses from amounts due to us by any customers for the year ended December 31 , 
2007. 

20. Business and Geographic Segment Information 

Our two reporting segments are the Commercial Segment and the Government Segment. 
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Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messages, 
location information, internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless 
phones. Our Commercial Segment also provides E9-1-1 services, commercial location-based services, 
inter-carrier text message distribution services, and carrier technology on a hosted, or service bureau, basis. 
We also earn subscriber revenue through wireless applications including our Rand McNally® Traffic 
application. 

Our Government Segment designs, assembles, sells and maintains data network communication systems, 
including our SwiftLink® deployable communication systems. We also own and operate secure satellite 
teleport facilities, resell access to satellite airtime (known as space segment), and provide communication 
systems integration, information technology services, and software systems and services to the 
U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers. 

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintain information 
regarding segment assets. Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment is not presented. 

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, our revenues include 
approximately $8,598, $5,551, and $7,349 of revenues generated from customers outside of the United States, 

The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments as of December 31, 2008, All revenues 
reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to net loss for the 
respective periods is also included below: 

II 
I' , , 

Total revenue 

Dlrecfcoits of -
revenue 

--Direct cost of 
services 

-[}Irect cost of 
sYstems _ 

Total Direct 
Costs 

32,402 29,192 61,594 29,346 22,815 52,161 31,409 21,131 52,540 

r-;;JWI n;~29JTIT;;jTIT SOllF 1 ",,,HI] ;,901 II T;;;rrrr;;;,J I i 1-;,;;~l 

41,395 

_Gross profit __ _ 
services gross 

.1 i I-==-rll 

profit '""-rT--'~ :---Systerii-i; gross 
32,039 

11 28~JII profit 

Total Gross 
Profll 60,475 • 

97,490 

I [TT I 

7,726 

130~ II r 
20,782 • 

138,885 34,370 55,697 

II_L_I ~JD I III] 
39,765 29,447 6,454 

.,<oJ II I ",49~Jl 1 670111 I 
81,257 • 40,944 ~ • 
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90,067 36,620 33,803 70,423 

_J-r J I LL L L ---:-JLLl. ___ L 
35,901 28,332 7,508 35,840 

16,20~ iT ["oOJ 1 LIdII! 16,,,[J 
54,101 • 40,340 • 14,173 $ 54,513 
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2008 2007 2006 

[01.1 s.g,,!.ri,gios~profit __ ... ii$T81,2571 1 ~.J54,jb1[ 1 IS LM,5.13fJ 
Researc:;h and development e>cpense __ {16,161) __ (1_~.0721 (12,5861 .. 

1 Sales=anam.rketingexpens~dm . ..-U 1(13,715)lrL(11,917 1 1 L<IU13J 
General an~ administrative exp_eflse __ _ _J28.238 __ (19,~ _116,959) 

1 DepreCi'ilion.nd .mortiz.tionof prQl1"rty and egLJipment ... ____ nu 1 [-JJ5,865) [1 (6:~QQ)TIlJfc956D I 
Amoriiz-ation ofac~uired intangibl_e assets _________ __--11iIL __ (14~D_ _ '-147) 

I-Trrteresre~p~nse . .. _u_____ ......U .LJ922)UT(t,Z76) 1 [T1T,151~J 
Amortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses, including $2.458 

- Ga7nri~e~~~li~ ~~~:t~~_~-7-.. ---- -_ -~~_==-~TT -1 8~_~~ ___ LJ ___ (~~~_~ 1 1-_--[_~~~_4~Jh 
-sene-fiTfer Income tax-es- - - - -- ------ 33,257 
Other income, n"I-----====_--:: .. _ .•.. ____ [1 1-22z[D-501iIJl--22~i 

57,568 ._ J~_1jtJ6 
_ __ ··-::::I<T'::.I ~~~~~:-:,., J 1 T j27§] 1 1 (23,67t9J 

$ 57,568 $ (1,289) $ (21,695) 

Incof!l~(loss) from con~in!Jl!!g~eratlons __ _ 
~oss frQm discontinl!~~ __ op~rC!~ions _ 
Net Income/(Ioss) 

21. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited) 

The following is a summary of the quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31,2008 
and 2007. The quarterly information has not been audited, but in our opinion, includes all normal recurring 
adjustments, which are, in the opinion of the Management, necessary for fair statement of the results of the 
interim periods. 

2008 
Three Months Ended 

(unaudited) 

__ ~ ~ __ -~~-==='j--i~=M~[~,,_~=-~h~4~~'~,4:;:1;;j~,I_.~ "~=I~u"n",.e 4t-~~~O,ii'illII<ii1! ;;:~=S=."p1,;~m=.,;b5'';;::;~~~;:;:_1i~_i-;@;,D=.='";.m,,,,;b;;;~::;,::;_~::;_1jJ 
Gross profit 

'nc~m_~)rom_ cQ_ratinuing opiirati~n_s~~~~ -----

19,212 $ 17,457 :.$_==2=5",,0,,2=4 

11,965[1 i> r::::mf',$ J 38,228 i 
$ 19,564 $ 

1$~4,61~1] L 
Loss from discontinued operations 
fletlnco",. --- -~ -------] $ I 3&ID i> .. 1 H 11,965] $ ·1 ~2,757i'@ 38,2"28' 

Earnings per share - basic from continuing 

e~~~~~re -=6'-s1~-fr-o-m-_~-isconti~_u_~-~~~ ____ L.'~_---,-__ ~_0_.1..J1 L~:---,I_· _--:0-:.~_8T1--l O]J-r-i O'JI 
Net income per share - basic $ 0.11 $ 0.28 ~$ ___ .....:.0';.:0.:;6 :.$ ___ .:;0;.:.8.:;7 

",.rnings. per share ::::'-diluted from- conliiiuing -r· I r--Tll I ----~q ··1 n TI1--J - II 
1 ~-,,~~.tIO~no; .._______ ~ 1 __ ~11l __ @_ 0,2(L!. __ .JO,O(;L __ 0.78; 
Loss per share diluted from discontinued 

operations $ $ $ ,,$==r="ii'~ 
f'leUncome ~rsh.re diluted IS 0.1111 m 0.2~ 1 ~_ 0.06:T1","_· _,-"".:;0",.7,,§1 
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2007 
Three Month5 Ended 

(unaudited) 
March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 

R~y~!!i=-------- :~~-:J L L 34,1111lT!S~ 3s,33~ l~ .. I 37,635,i)$37,078: 

Gross profit $ 14,295 =$ __ --1:.:0"',6,,8"'1. $ 14.138 $ 14,987 

ilncome/(IQss)Jrom continuinlL"pe,ations .. J~ ___ L_ 7671T~ - I (s~@~3)'c~:_:=L __ Y16Jl _2,49{: 
Income/(Ioss) from discontinued operations (124) (145) 54 (61) 

!'i~niicomel(loss) -- .. T ~ .. I 64~ I Li _ (6,138) I ~ uT~I .. 2:43~ I 
Earnings/(Ioss) per share - basic from 

continuin 0 erations 
Loss per share - basiCfrom discontinued 
_operations 

Net income/(Ioss) per share - basic 

0.04 $ 0.06 

",----"---",0,=001] "-~ ----"--.....;(=O.O=~] 
~$~===0=.0~2 ~$~~~~~$==~==0=.0~4 ~$ ____ ~0~.0~6 

l'Ea;~~~~~l~~~~~~~:ti~~a;e ____ di_~u-tedf~~~ ___ ~~kl __ o:oJ--] ~_ j __ =(0.15[l~ ___ o.oJ [ ~ _ J~ ~~l 
Net income/(Ioss) per share - diluted from 

discontinued operations 

~errricome/(ross) -per=sh_?!~_=_ ~iruied 

22. Commitments and Contingencies 

$ 
I ~--

(0.00) $ 

o.ozl~ I 
(0.00) ~$ ='T=,,;O~'O~0h-~$e==c-,---'(~O'~OO) 
(0.15) I -~ r O.O~J ~,,---,----,Oo.::'O"'~----. 

The Company has been notified that some customers may seek indemnification under its contractual 
arrangements with those customers for costs associated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of 
certain patents through the use of our products and services in combination with the use of products and 
services of multiple other vendors. The Company will continue to negotiate with these customers in good faith 
because the Company believes its technology does not infringe on the cited patents and due to specific 
clauses within the customer contractual arrangements that mayor may not give rise to an indemnification 
obligation. Although the Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters, we do not expect the 
resolutions will have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers 
and a director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our initial public offering (the 
"Underwriters"): Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., et al., United States District Court for the 
Southern District of New York, Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of 
damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common 
Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters 
agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers 
in exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and agreements by those purchasers to make 
additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs 
allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act, and that the underwriters 
violated Section 1 O(b) of the Exchange Act. and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims against us of 
violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15, 
2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, 
all issuer defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope 
of the bar order set forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the 
scope of the bar order, and on August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the 
settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the 
District Court's certification of 
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the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the 
underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing and Rehearing En Bane with the Second Circuit 
on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied 
plaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a more limited class in the District 
Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On November 13, 
2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated "focus cases" filed a motion to dismiss the second 
consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District 
Court issued an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in 
the "focus cases." We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased 
Directors and Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result 
from these claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be 
covered by the insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have 
been named in nearly identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the 
plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us. 

On July 12, 2006, we filed suit in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia against 
Mobile 365 (now Sybase 365, a subsidiary of Sybase Inc.) and WiderThan Americas for patent infringement 
related to U.S. patent No. 6,985,748, Inter-Carrier Short Messaging Service Providing Phone Number Only 
Experience ("the '748 patent"), issued to the Company. We resolved the matter with regard to WiderThan 
Americas, and, during the second quarter of 2007, we received a favorable jury decision that Sybase 365 
infringed the claims of our patent. The jury awarded us a one-time monetary payment in excess of $1 0 million 
for past damages and a 12% royalty. The jury also found Sybase 365's infringement willful and upheld the 
validity of the patent. After the jury verdict, both parties filed post-trial motions. The court denied Sybase 365's 
post-trial motion for a new trial or a judgment in its favor, granted our motion for a permanent injunction 
prohibiting any further infringement by Sybase 365, but stayed the injunction pending the outcome of any 
appeal that may be filed, reduced the jury verdict damages award by $2.2 million and vacated the jury finding 
of willful infringement. We expect that Sybase 365 will appeal from the final judgment of the district court to 
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. In the first quarter of 2008, Sybase 365 filed a request for 
reexamination of the '748 patent claiming that the patent is invalid. In the second quarter of 2008, the United 
States Patent and Trademark Office granted the request and began the requested reexamination of the '748 
patent. There can be no assurances to what extent the matter will continue to be successful, if at all. 
Additionally, we could become subject to counterclaims or further challenges to the validity of the '748 patent. 
To date, the Company has not received or recorded any amounts related to this jury award. 

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal 
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the 
ordinary course of our business. 

23. Related Party Transactions 

In February 2003, we entered into an agreement with Annapolis Partners LLC to explore the opportunity of 
relocating our Annapolis offices to a planned new real estate development. Our President and Chief Executive 
Officer owns a controlling voting and economic interest in Annapolis Partners LLC and he also serves as a 
member. The financial and many other terms of the agreement have not yet been established. The lease is 
subject to several contingencies and rights of termination. For example, the agreement can be terminated at 
the sole discretion of our Board of Directors if the terms and conditions of the development are unacceptable to 
us, including without limitation the circumstances that market conditions make the agreement not favorable to 
us or the overall cost is not in the best interest to us or our shareholders, or any legal or regulatory restrictions 
apply. Our Board of Directors will evaluate this opportunity along with alternatives that are or may become 
available in the relevant time periods and there is no assurance that we will enter into a definitive agreement at 
this new development site. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant 
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. 

By: lsi MAURICE B. TOSe 

Maurice B. Tos€! 
Chief Executive Officer, President and 

Chairman of the Board 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by 
the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. The 
undersigned hereby constitute and appoint Maurice B. Tose, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. and Bruce A. White, and 
each of them, their true and lawful agents and attorneys-in-fact with full power and authority in said agents and 
attorneysRinRfact, and in anyone or more of them, to sign for the undersigned and in their respective names as 
directors and officers of TeleCommunication Systems, any amendment or supplement hereto. The 
undersigned hereby confirm all acts taken by such agents and attorneys-in-fact, and anyone or more of them, 
as herein authorized 

Name 

lsI MAURICE B. TOSe 

Maurice B. Tose 
lsI THOMAS M. BRANDT, JR. 

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
lsI JAMES M. BETHMANN 

James M. Bethmann 
lsI CLYDE A. HEINTZELMAN 

Clyde A. Heintzelman 
lsI JAN C. HULY 

Jan C. Huly 
lsI RICHARD A. KOZAK 

Richard A. Kozak 

Weldon H. Latham 
lsI BYRON F. MARCHANT 

Byron F. Marchant 
lsI RICHARD A. YOUNG 

Richard A. Young 
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Officer and Director 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 

Exhibit 
Numbers Description 

4.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to the company's Quarterly 
Report on Form 10-0 for the Quarter ended June 30, 2004) 

4.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on 
Form 10-0 for the quarter ended June 30, 2004) 

4.3 Form of Class A Common Stock certificate. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form 5-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

4.5 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement for each of the 
investors party to the Securities Purchase Agreement dated January 13, 2004. (Incorporated by reference to 
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004) 

4.6 Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Purchasers named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31,2005) 

4.7 Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 
2006 to each of the Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report 
on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 

4.8 Notes issued pursuant to the Note Purchase Agreement dated March 13, 2006 to each of the Purchasers 
named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for 
the year ended December 31, 2005) 

4.9 Registration Rights Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company and the Investors named 
therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year 
ended December 31,2005) 

4.10 Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Bonanza 
Master Fund Ltd., as Agent, and the Secured Parties named therein (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31,2005) 

4.11 Subordination Agreement dated March 13, 2006 by and among the Company, Silicon Valley Bank, and the 
Purchasers named therein (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K, as 
amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 

10.1 West Garrett Office Building Full service Lease Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the 
Company and West Garrett Joint Venture. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.2t Form of Indemnification Agreement. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on 
Form 5-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.3t Fourth Amended and Restated 1997 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the 
Company's definitive proxy statement for its 2004 Annual Meeting of stockholders as filed with the SEC on 
June 17. 2004 (No. 000-30821)) 

10At First Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-136072)) 

10.5t Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.6t Optionee Agreement dated July 29, 1998 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. (Incorporated 
by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.7t Optionee Agreement dated October 1, 1997 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.8t Optionee Agreement dated July 29,1998 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-l (No. 333-35522)) 

10.9t Optionee Agreement dated April 1 , 1999 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (No. 333-35522)) 

10.l0t 401 (k) and Profit Sharing Plan of the Company dated January 1, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (No. 333-51656)) 
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10.11 t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Richard A. Young. 
(Incorporated by reference to Ihe Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.12t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Thomas M. Brandt. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30,2001) 

10.13t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Drew A. Morin. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for Ihe quarter ended 
September 30,2001) 

10.14t Employment Agreement dated February 1, 2001 by and between the Company and Timothy J. Lorello. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2001) 

10.15:t: Services Integration Agreement dated January 31, 2002 by and between the Company and Hutchison 3G. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 1 O-K for the year ended December 31, 
2001) 

10.16 Deed of Lease by and between Annapolis Partner, LLC and the Company. (Incorporated by reference to the 
Company's Annual Report on Form 1 O-K for the year ended December 31, 2002) 

10.17t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.1St Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.19t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.20t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.21t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon H. Latham. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.22t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.23t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Timothy J. Lorello. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.24t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Bryon F. Marchant. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.25t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference 10 the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.26t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Drew A. Morin. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.27t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.2Bt Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Maurice B. Tose. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.29t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O·Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.30t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Kevin M. Webb. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,2003) 

10.31 t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 

10.32t Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Young. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Quarterly Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2003) 
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10.33 

10.34 

10.35 

10.36 

10.37t 

10.38t 

10.39t 

10AOt 

10.46 

10A7t 
10A8t 
10A9t 
12.1 
21.1 
23.1 
23.2 
31.1 
31.2 
32.1 

32.2 

99.01 

Description 

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 18, 2003 by and among the Company and the 
investors party to the 2003 SPA. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company's Current Report 
on Form 8-K dated December 18, 2003) 
Trademark License Agreement by and among Aether, TSYS and the Company dated as of January 13, 
2004. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23,2004) 
Registration Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Aether dated as of January 13, 2004. 
(Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 23, 2004) 
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon Valley 
Bank. (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterty Report on Form 1 O-Q for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2004) 
Restricted slock award certificate to Mr. Clyde A. Heintzelman (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Richard A. Kozak (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Weldon F. Latham (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 
Restricted stock award certificate to Mr. Byron F. Marchant (Incorporated by reference to the Company's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended December 31, 2005) 
Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement by and between the Company and Silicon 
Valley Bank (Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter 
ended September 30, 2005) 
Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement 
Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement 
Form of Restricted Stock Grant Agreement 
Supplemental Financial Statement Schedule II 
Subsidiaries of the Registrant 
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP 
Consent of James Cowper 
Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 
Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) 
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 
Report of Independent Auditors- James Cowper 

t Management contract, compensatory plans or arrangement required to be filed as an exhibit pursuant to 
Item 15(a)(3) of Form 10-K. 

::I: Confidential treatment has been for certain portions of this Exhibit pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, which portions have been omitted and filed separately with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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Exhibit 23.1 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-144742. 333-136072, 
333-118610, 333-107466, 333-66676, 333-51656, and 333-48026) pertaining to various stock incentive and option plans 
and in Registration Statements on Form S-3 (Nos. 333-133018, 333-119431, 333-112759, and 333-104305) pertaining to 
various stock offerings of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. of our reports dated March 2, 2009, with respect to the 
consolidated financial statements and schedule of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial reporting of Telecommunication Systems, Inc. included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) of 
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2008. 

Baltimore, Maryland 
March 2, 2009 
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Exhibit 31.1 

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Maurice B. Tose, certify that: 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1 O-K of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.; 

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and 
for, the periods presented in this report; 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to 
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in 
the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting. 

lsi Maurice B. Tose 
Maurice B. Tose 
Chairman, CEO and President 
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'-'1IIIIIP!·TeleCommunication 

Convergent 

CERTIFICATIONS 

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that: 

a) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1 O-K ofTeleCommunication Systems, Inc.; 

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state 
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and 
for, the periods presented in this report; 

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting 
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be 
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its 
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in 
which this report is being prepared; 

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to 
be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles; 

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report 
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period 
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred 
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal 
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors 
(or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial 
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize 
and report financial information; and 

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in 
the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting. 

lsi Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Sr. Vice President & CFO 
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...... 1II!!IP..TeleCommunication 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002) 

Exhibit 32.1 

I, Maurice B. Tose, President and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, 
Inc. (the "Registrant"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the "Report") fully 
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.s.C. 78m); and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 

lsi Maurice B. Tose 
Maurice B. Tose 
Date: March 3, 2009 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained 
by the Company and fumished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
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.... ,.... TeleCommunication 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer 
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350 

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes·Oxley Act of 2002) 

Exhibit 32.2 

I. Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer) ofTeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the 
"'Registrant"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes·Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that: 

(1) The Annual Report on Form 1 O·K of the Company for the period ended December 31, 2008 (the "'Report"') fully 
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m); and 

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of 
operations of the Company. 

/stThomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr. 
Date: March 3, 2009 

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained 
by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 

Crealed by 10K Wizard www.10KWizard.colll 
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